EXECUTIVE FINANCE COMMITTEE

Doubletree by Hilton Oceanfront Hotel Atlantic Beach, North Carolina

December 11, 2015

SUMMARY MINUTES

COMMITTEE MEMBERS:

Dr. Michelle Duval, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair

Mel Bell Ben Hartig

Jessica McCawley

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Anna Beckwith
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin

Zack Bowen
Mark Brown
Jack Cox

Dr. Roy Crabtree Doug Haymans

Dr. Wilson Laney

COUNCIL STAFF:

Bob Mahood Gregg Waugh
Kim Iverson Amber Von Harten
Roger Pugliese Myra Brouwer

Dr. Mike Errigo
Dr. Kari MacLauchlin
Chip Collier
Dr. Brian Cheuvront

John Carmichael Mike Collins

Julie O'Dell

PARTICIPANTS/OBSERVERS:

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Monica Smit-Brunello

Dr. Jack McGovern Erika Burgess

Scott Sandorf

Additional observers attached

The Executive Finance Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Doubletree by Hilton Oceanfront Hotel, Thursday afternoon, December 10, 2015, and was called to order at 4:45 o'clock p.m. by Madam Chairman Michelle Duval.

DR. DUVAL: All right, everybody I would like to go ahead and call the Executive Finance Committee meeting to order. The first item of business is approval of the agenda. Are there any modifications to the agenda? Seeing none; the agenda stands approved. The next item is approval of our September, 2015 committee minutes. Are there any edits to the minutes? Seeing none; those minutes stand approved. The next item is the status of the council year 2015 budget expenditures, and I'm going to turn it over to Bob.

MR. MAHOOD: And I'm going to turn it over to Mike.

MR. COLLINS: And I'm going to do my best. I think we're in good shape going into the end of the year. I project somewhere about a \$250,000.00 carryover to next year, I attribute that to the fruits of a renegotiated health insurance plan; three of us being off the health insurance policy, and the webinars that we've gone to for a majority of our outreach.

Now some of the potholes that are in the future, we have to renegotiate our health insurance policy in the spring of next year, so we'll have to see how that goes. As far as money for 2016, we really haven't gotten any word yet. It looks like it is going to be a continuing resolution, but the grants office told me that they anticipate funding the first quarter this month. We'll have to see how that shakes out.

We're still developing the 2016 budget, and since there is no clear budget from grants, it is kind of hard to put numbers on paper and knowing what the bottom line might be. You could help us out by getting your TOs in for this meeting and for SEDAR 41 as quickly as possible when those meetings end so we can close out the year. That's it, does anybody have any questions?

DR. DUVAL: Questions for Mike about the budget?

MR. HARTIG: Thank you for all your efforts in saving the council money. You've done a world of work and it has paid a lot of dividends for us; and we really appreciate your efforts.

MR. COLLINS: Thank you, and I want to also kind of give a shout out to Julie, she helps with that on some of the contracts that we have with the copiers and things like that. She puts her two cents in.

DR. DUVAL: All right, any other questions or kudos? All right, let's move on to the next agenda item.

MR. MAHOOD: The next item is under Attachment 2, I believe. Yes, Attachment 2 and it is the write up I've been providing at the end of each year indicating the amount of activity that the council has engaged in, along with the council staff and the Southeast Regional Office and the Southeast Fisheries Science Center.

We came up a little short this year; we were two major actions behind what we did last year. I know we're supposed to do more every year, but we just couldn't pull it off. It is significant, I

mean, when you look at it and you start reading through the things that the council sent on the Secretary for approval.

I think there were, I guess I don't have the exact numbers, it was a lot. There were 30 major actions and that included actions that were approved by the Secretary of Commerce, actions that were transmitted to the Secretary for review and approval and actions that were undergoing development during this year. Well, I did have the numbers; I just don't have them in numbers.

Seven amendments were completed and implemented by the Secretary of Commerce; that is a pretty significant amount of activity to hit the regulatory format and put out new regulations to help our fisheries. There were six other amendments that were approved by the council, and they are undergoing secretarial review right now, and then 18 other actions that are currently under development as we go through the end of this year.

That is just a significant amount. I look back 20 years ago, I think it was approximately 20 years ago, and we had like three actions during the year. The amount of activity has really, really increased. The amount of workload, the amount of paper – well, you don't get paper – the amount of little things we send through the sky to you on your finger drives or whatever has been tremendous.

I know it is very difficult to keep up with a lot of that, and you know, we just encourage everyone to at the minimum read the overviews and the decision documents, and you pretty well get a good picture; and then the background information as you get the opportunity to read it. I know it is pretty overwhelming; we realize that as a staff.

Now, one thing I think the person following me as the Executive Director needs to work on is getting all the information to the council members two weeks in advance. Boy that has been a goal for I don't know how many years. But I know Gregg can pull it off. But there has been a lot of activity this year, the staff.

I'll tell you the staff at all levels have really been busting their rear ends. We couldn't pull it off if we didn't have the teams we have between NMFS and the council staff. Without that there would be no chance we could do the amount of activity or the amount of work that is produced. We thank our friends down at the Center and at the Regional Office for all their help with this.

It was kind of funny the other day, I am kind of telling on myself. I don't know if you all picked up on it, Jack, but when I was thanking you all down there during our briefing I said, we've really enjoyed working for you. Now the staff here picked up on it real quick; a little Freudian slip. Then I almost started to say, well we mean you, Roy. But no, we've really enjoyed working with the people down there. We have a good working relationship now and it has been a real pleasure working with the folks down there. Unless somebody has some specific questions, Madam Chairman that is all I have on that.

DR. DUVAL: I was going to say something, and I can't even remember what it was; it has been a long week at this point. Are there questions or comments? Oh, I know what I was going to say. I think we should focus on giving the number of actions. I think we need to focus on quality rather than quantity in the future, in terms of actions. I know we've had this kind of ongoing, but it definitely needs to be our New Year's resolution to try to reduce the workload.

I'll just add my profound thanks to Bob's for the work that the folks in the Region and the Center do, and of course our staff; it is tremendous, the amount of energy that you guys have. I can't even believe it. There must be some clones or something working in closest somewhere, or a time warp that someone is not sharing with me. I really appreciate it. Please know that we thank all of you.

MR. HARTIG: Yes, I mean the citizen science, the initiative is listed the last thing in this document. I mean I came to you, Bob, and Bob, you know, there is this citizen science program that I can attend out there in California. I'm pretty interested in this subject. He is, yes, yes, sure go on. We'll get you out there. Well, go to that, come back and all of a sudden the motion is made, we've got a Citizen Science Initiative going forward; and he never bats an eye.

I mean, he knows the possible value this could have for the council and just bucked up and here we go, down this road. Then the staff, my God, they did the same thing. They are working double overtime trying to get this thing going, and it has been an incredible experience so far, to be able to get where we are with the workshop that we're going to have in January. Thank you very much for your leadership in that.

MR. MAHOOD: Well, and it is not just that. We've had great support from the Regional Office and the Center. I'm glad to see Bonnie has really bought into this citizen science thing. She is very passionate about it, so I think that will really help it move; after all, she is the lady that has the money for that kind of thing.

But no, I think it is going to be a great effort, and that along with the visioning, which obviously took up quite a bit of our time, everyone's time this year has really kind of added to the workload. But I think it was very beneficial. It was very professional, I think, the way it was done and what was accomplished over the period of time, so I'm happy with that.

DR. DUVAL: Any other questions or comments for Bob on our activities and accomplishments? All right, seeing none; we'll go ahead and I think turn things over to Gregg for the council follow up and priorities. These are Attachments 3A and 3B.

MR. WAUGH: The first item is the Regional Operating Agreement or what we call our Follow-up Attachment 3A. I am not going to go through that. This is what we used to track the details of what is going on in each amendment. You can, especially committee Chairs should take a look at the Draft March Agenda, and we've already got some modifications here. We need more time for dolphin wahoo. But committee Chairs should look at that. It begins on Page 84. If you have some suggested changes, you think you need more time, let your staff lead or me know about that. We'll update this with our priorities after we work through that from this meeting. But again, I'm not going to go through that. If you have any questions, I will be glad to answer them; or get with me one on one.

The main item we wanted to deal with was looking at the priorities for the upcoming year. I think first Amber was going to go over the results from the visioning amendment results. Then we'll get in to see how we fold that into the slots that we have available.

MS. VON HARTEN: Essentially, this is listed in the order of priority. This is the rating average for how this kind of fleshed out. The top priority that you all ranked was the Fishery Seasonality Retention Amendment. That was the one that was using the approach that would take several actions across several objectives to develop an amendment.

The next one was sub-regional management, and then a sector-based amendment for the commercial sector and then the last three fell out like that. I guess what we need guidance on is how you want to collect public input on this, and how you want to reserve a slot for the next 2016 and '17; one slot, two slots, whatever. I can send this around if everybody would like to see this.

DR. DUVAL: Thanks, Amber.

MR. WAUGH: This is the spreadsheet. You saw this basically in October. We went over it briefly on Monday also. I've been making notes as we have had discussions within the various committees. If you look at Item 3 here, in terms of timing, for a full amendment we're blocking out four quarters.

Basically, it takes a year to get through a full amendment. That is to give you a chance to see the final document at the final meeting. A framework of a regulatory amendment, we're blocking out three quarters; that will basically give you three council meetings, so that at that last meeting, you look at the final document to move forward.

Again, what we've got blocked out here, and this only shows our staff leads. We've got Mike Errigo, who helps with data and input on all our amendments. He bridges the gap between assessments and amendments, and John provides input on assessment related issues and analyses. They help with these as well.

But just looking at our sort of staff leads, we've blocked out for Brian to do economic analyses for all the amendments, Kari to do social analysis for all the amendments; and then that would leave them the opportunity to work on another amendment as the lead. Bold items are carryover from last year, so CMP Amendment 26; Kari will be finishing up in the first quarter of 2016.

Then she would be available to work on another amendment. Myra is finishing up Amendment 37 the first two quarters, and then basically all of next year will be working on Amendment 41. We've got issues that are in Regulatory Amendment 23, Regulatory Amendment 24; our suggestion is to combine those.

There has been some discussion about adding a few items to that. The black sea bass size limit issue is one that could be added to that; and Mel has some interest in looking at the powerhead prohibition off of South Carolina, and that would be the first opportunity for that action to be considered.

The Regulatory Amendment 23/24, if we combine that, that could also take care of the assessment related actions that come from the golden tile and gray triggerfish assessments. Amendment 43 would be red snapper, and that is blocked out to take a whole year; and Chip would be our lead on that.

Chip has expertise from his time on the SSC reviewing the prior assessments. He's attending all of the assessment workshops, as is our other staff Mike, as well. I will be finishing up work on Amendment 36 and a little bit of the for-hire, and then transition in with a new person to take that over fairly quickly.

Roger is working on the FEP2 all of next year, some carryover resulting from that into 2017. What we've got sort of penned in here for your consideration then is a coral and shrimp amendment. That would look at the allowable fishing areas for golden tile and rock shrimp, potentially modifying those.

We've got CE-BA3 on here; we'll get an update from the region on where we stand with the bycatch reporting. There will be no work done on CE-BA3 in the first quarter, so that frees up some time that Chip has there. There has been talk about a yellowtail amendment to deal with a range of alternatives.

The recommendation would be to do that as a separate amendment, because we will need to coordinate with the state of Florida and with the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council to make sure we have consistent regulations. There was talk about a cobia, making changes to the bat limit and perhaps some other measures there.

That could be done via a framework and again that is something that is in the coastal migratory pelagics, so Kari could work on that if you wanted to put that in here. Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 10, we didn't get through that here, so if you wanted to keep that on that would be an amendment, so four quarters.

If we start back up with that at the March meeting, then this would slide, basically one quarter. What is not on there is spiny lobster if we have to do anything with that. We will have new assessment results coming for blueline, this is Item 11 on there; for blueline and red grouper at our March or June, 2017 meeting; perhaps starting after that June meeting we would be looking at a regulatory amendment to deal with those two.

Certainly, the bold items here are carryover and so we would think you would want to keep those and finish those up. The rest and the economic and social analyses are pretty well set. The rest of it is up to you. You can move these things around, take them off, and put new items in there. This is how we're going to indicate our priority for working on amendments.

MR. BREWER: With regard to Dolphin Wahoo Amendment 10. We know that we're not even going to be looking at that until March, now they see you've already said the first quarter is freed up. I'm thinking that with regard to that Amendment 5, the end of July or thereabouts, we may have a much better idea of what, if anything, is necessary under Amendment 10; because we may find that with the additional 400 and something thousand pounds that it has gone over to the commercial; and with what we have put in the framework amendment that a lot of work is not going to be necessary there.

In other words, it may well be that with those two steps commercial are going to be within their quota, and we may not have the problem that we were worried about. It might be that you would want to free up even more than one quarter on Dolphin Wahoo 10.

MS. BECKWITH: I was not thinking quite along those lines, but if we have a discussion about what we take to scoping, we'll still talk about what we might take to scoping in March, and then take it to scoping and have the Dolphin Wahoo Committee chime in, probably in April. We won't really be ready to look at anything likely until June.

But that still means that Brian will have some work associated with it. I was wondering with that freed up slot in the first quarter, if that might allow at least some analysis for the cobia framework to be done. I don't know if Brian does that sort of stuff, but to get us moving in that direction for the March meeting.

MR. WAUGH: Sure, we can look at rearranging who is working on what, but certainly, Brian would be doing the economic analyses. We wouldn't anticipate being able to finish that cobia item there. But certainly, he could devote some of his time to that, yes.

DR. DUVAL: When I look at some of the stuff, and I look at the top two priorities that fell out of the survey that we took, the first was fisheries seasonality and retention and the second was sub-regional management. Just in looking at some of the items that are slated for Regulatory Amendment 23 and 24.

I think fishery seasonality and retention could capture the spawning season closure for shallow water groupers, it could capture the jack's trip limit. We could put the golden tilefish fishing year that we would either fit in there or under sub-regional management; the golden tilefish fishing year.

I think the black sea bass size limit might fit under the seasonality retention. I'm just trying to think of ways where, if how we organize some of these priorities such that they are consistent with visioning. That is, Dolphin Wahoo Committee; 20.5 Pages; 276.75, what I was sort of encouraging folks to think about as we were moving forward.

MS. McCAWLEY: Does that mean that the yellowtail could go under the sub-regional management and take up a slot?

DR. DUVAL: I was thinking about that. I know that yellowtail might be a special case just because we have to coordinate with the Gulf Council on this. I would welcome other thoughts around the table on that.

MS. BECKWITH: Not so much on the yellowtail, but there is also that potential ACL share component that it sounds like there is some interest in that would, according to what the Accessibility Amendment.

DR. DUVAL: Fishery Seasonality and Retention?

MS. BECKWITH: Yes.

MR. PHILLIPS: Hello, up there. I have just been kind of making notes, and the list is getting pretty long. Yes, we might have to sit down and work with staff and figure out what we can

group together and where we can put it; and maybe bring this back at Full Council. In coral shrimp, I don't want things to fall off of the table.

But we don't have any, as far as the golden crab, potential expanded area. We don't have any maps yet or any mapping on where we could put a line yet. If we don't have the maps we need to figure out what we might can do, when we might can do it. I really hate sliding that back, but on the other hand, if we don't have the material we need to work and do it. We need to be using that time wisely.

DR. DUVAL: Charlie, are you saying remove coral shrimp or are you saying shift it down into 2017 until we can get the information that we need to move forward with this?

MR. PHILLIPS: Madam Chair, I'm bringing it up for discussion. The shrimp, we know what the lines are. Now whether we want to go ahead and just do the shrimp and not be able to do the golden crab line, because we do not know where the line is at that. My suggestion is to have some kind of discussion on what is rational, what we can do and makes sense and what doesn't.

MR. WAUGH: There are some efforts ongoing now to get mapping down. Chip had a call; he's coordinating with Roger so that work is ongoing. As far as the rock shrimp, I thought once we had the lines actually resolved that there is less pressure now to look at adjusting those again. There was a lot of confusion over the lines, and I don't know if Roger could clarify that. But my understanding is that now that the fishermen actually have the correct corner locations plotted, it wasn't that much of an issue any more. Chip may want to weigh in on that as well.

MR. PUGLIESE: Just real quick. I think one of the things that are telling is when we were looking at the iteration of the line that was being published and making sure, there was some confusion in the way it was being projected through their information. They had plotted their locational information.

Once they actually re-plotted it, virtually all the information was showing that they were fishing outside that line anyway. I think to a great degree that helped clarify that it wasn't in the core area that they had identified earlier on. Chip may be able to add if there are any other comments. I don't think we've had any additional real requests to go back and revisit that deliberation of that fine line; but things may be changing as we speak.

MR. COLLIER: I don't think it's changing, but the shrimpers definitely wanted those lines to be looked at again, just to make sure that it is where they need to be based on coral distribution.

DR. DUVAL: To that point, Charlie, and then I am going to get to Chris and Jack.

MR. PHILLIPS: That being said. Maybe we just need to check with Mike Merrifield and make sure everybody is on the same page. If we need to make some half-mile, quarter-mile adjustments so be it; because again a quarter of a mile makes a lot of difference sometimes in some places.

MR. CONKLIN: Thanks for allowing me to speak; I'm not on this committee. Did we just move some shrimp lines in one amendment and that was our second time moving them? Okay, thanks for the clarification there. Look it has been a common theme this week, we had a

comment from Bill Kelly about Luis or Leann Bosarge in the Gulf, and we saw some of her ideas and the Gulf Council's ideas on a soft allocation shift in season.

There has been a lot of talk about something like that for a few years, and if there is any way we can begin work on something like that. That could possibly be - you know, if we take time and do that and do it the right way, it might actually free up a lot more time so we wouldn't have to be patching up holes in other fisheries if we could keep them open and not have to rush to fix the dolphin, or fix the blueline tilefish or something like that.

MS. BECKWITH: Or Cobia, because it already helped us on cobia.

MR. CONKLIN: Cobia, yes. I know some people weren't really that open to it before, they thought maybe the commercial guys were going to get all the fish. But you know we learned this week that there could be shifts between the sectors. I think it is past time to begin work on something like that if at all possible. Thank you for allowing me to speak.

DR. DUVAL: Chris, you can always speak. Jack.

MR. COX: Thank you, I'm not on the committee, but for the almaco and into Amendment 23, I continue to get the commercial crowd to ask me to please let's do something with that; so let's make that a priority in 2016.

DR. DUVAL: I don't know if you heard what I said previously, but that was something that could, if you looked at how the priorities fell out from the visioning survey that we took, one of the first things was a fishery seasonality retention amendment. Regulatory Amendment 23 could become the Fishery Seasonality Retention Amendment, where I think putting in a trip limit on the jacks to address being able to stretch that fishery out could fit.

MR. COX: Okay, thank you. It continues to get pushed.

MR. CONKLIN: We were having some conversation earlier in the week, Ben and I and Jack and we've been talking a little while about this as well. But maybe we could do something with red porgy in that amendment as well, about trying to get it opened up during the first Bee-Liner season, since we have a ton of discards.

DR. DUVAL: That was right, Chris had brought forward some potential options looking at, wasn't it a split season for red porgy?

MR. CONKLIN: I believe so, yes ma'am. Just for the record, Ben said he's read a lot of stuff saying that we might get it open during the spawning season.

MR. HARTIG: There isn't a lot of biological, I mean they're hermaphroditic, but it doesn't really give you the bang for the buck as it does for a number of other species. I'll get the citation; and they spawn everywhere that was the other thing, and they don't form large aggregations.

DR. DUVAL: Things on the list, and I am just thinking these are things that could fit into a regulatory amendment that would be focused on Fishery Seasonality and Retention. Red porgy

split season, the jacks complex, the spawning season closures, the shallow water grouper spawning season closure, possibly the – I'm trying to figure out where the black sea bass size limit might go – the I guess I would call it the temporary allocation shift framework that Chris brought up. That might fit under retention.

The one thing we want to be careful about is, you know, as Roy said, you take a regulatory amendment, you load it up with a lot of things and it takes just as long as a normal amendment by the time you get through all those analyses. I think we just want to be careful about that. Just because you shove a bunch of things into one slot, doesn't mean that it's only going to take two or three slots.

Then it might bleed over into taking much longer than you think. In some instances it just might be better to parse those things out. We need to check in on a coral shrimp amendment, cobia framework, yellowtail; whether that is its own special amendment or if that is part of subregional management. I'm only seeing, in terms of 2016 I see one, two, three, four, five open slots right now and that is it; and recognizing that a regulatory amendment takes up three slots.

If there is a temporary allocation Gregg is reminding me that is a plan amendment. That would take up four slots. It seems like we've been talking about and the reason I encourage folks to look at the Gulf Council actions in Amendment 26, and reminding folks who were here a couple years ago when we were looking at a Spanish temporary allocation shift.

That this should be a broad framework that we structure it so that either sector could take advantage of this kind of opportunity, you know it is not just a one way trade. We would want to make sure we were structuring it such that we set up triggers that could be used in any fishery.

MR. HAYMANS: I am not on your committee, but I thought that you said you left the Coral Shrimp in there, and based on what we talked about a few minutes ago, I wouldn't have a problem in the world moving Coral Shrimp to '17 or later and opening those spots up. I think there are a few others who agree with that.

MR. BOWEN: I know I would.

DR. DUVAL: I think the Coral Shrimp Amendment that was going to be, so we were looking at the lines for the rock shrimp access areas as well as golden crab areas. You were looking at two things in there, and I'm not so sure the golden crab folks were interested in having that delayed.

MR. HAYMANS: It's a work issue? I mean if we're trying to get some of the visioning stuff accomplished and trying to keep the work level fine. To me prioritizing those slots, that is a bottom priority for this. I mean I don't want to remove it off of the two-year list here, but I would certainly move it down the list.

MR. BOWEN: I'm not taking anything away from the hard working golden crabbers that we have in the South Atlantic. But we have what 11 or 7 or something that are active, and we've got thousands and thousands of fishermen. The rationale behind moving that down, I think it effects, yes everything is important but there are a lot more fishermen than there are golden crabbers.

MR. PHILLIPS: Well, I would like to talk to the rock shrimp guys to make sure that they can live where they are. Yes, that is true. There are only a handful of golden crab guys, and they've been pretty patiently waiting on their stuff. We've just got to use some good management decisions and decide how to run rabbits. I don't like deciding things on two minutes of thought on it.

DR. DUVAL: I'm not asking you to make a decision right now; I'm just laying out what things are there. Jessica, I was going to ask you, can you remind us again the potential yellowtail actions. You mentioned them yesterday, but just refresh my memory.

MS. McCAWLEY: I think that we were talking about modification for the ACL, a possible trip limit.

MS. BURGESS: One new thing that has come up in public hearing that I think would be worth, public comments for this most recent regulatory amendment that would be interested in exploring would be a potential spawning season trip limit and also maybe a step down once a portion of the ACL has been reached. That was a new comment that we had heard that we have not heard before during previous yellowtail comments.

DR. DUVAL: Yes, so when I was thinking of a trip limit that is what I was thinking of, was the comments that we had gotten about a trip limit that was really specific to the spawning season; as opposed to throughout the regular year. But you could just consider both. Trip limits, an ACL step down and then this allocation shift approach that we've been discussing.

MR. PHILLIPS: If we have to move things to, I think it was Chester's point of our trip limits and step downs we have on dolphin. After we get through scoping we may also want to move that down and do some of these more pressing issues to fill in those slots and then have some educated, more fleshed out discussions on how to run those rabbits and when to run those rabbits on that.

DR. DUVAL: On the record, people.

MR. PHILLIPS: Ten.

DR. DUVAL: Gregg has been moving stuff around on the screen as we've been talking; so if you see under the Myra slot, lucky Myra, Fishery Seasonality Retention Amendment. I am thinking if we just have one regulatory amendment that is focused on items from visioning that are addressing this seasonality retention that would be good, because we do have other priorities that we need to focus on. I don't know how folks would feel about yellowtail snapper. It is certainly sub-regional management, but I guess in my mind I was thinking in terms of sub-regional management that we would be talking about a broader area, whereas yellowtail, I think, is kind of a special case of sub-regional management. I mean clearly we need to do something.

MR. HARTIG: I want to ask a question. We're trying to slow down; I'm just going how many items can we put in a regulatory amendment?

MR. MAHOOD: What is it, 150, Roy?

MR. HARTIG: I just think you really need to just have X amount of items in a regulatory amendment. Now I know probably some are more challenging than others, which should take into account how many you could put in as well. This is where I got back to the decision tree approach we talked about. I talked about, we didn't, I talked about; somewhere down the line I think we're going to need that. But to me, we're trying to slow down and then we've taken these regulatory amendments and just cramming them full of stuff, and then we're not slowing down.

MS. McCAWLEY: I was going to mention that I thought that the Gulf Council had already started a larger amendment on yellowtail. Do we not need to be tracking and doing that at somewhat the same timeframe?

DR. DUVAL: I don't know.

MS. McCAWLEY: I mean, I'm pretty sure that they started an amendment, a broader amendment like what we're talking about here, so if they started it.

MR. HAYMANS: May I speak to Ben's point for just a moment? Ben, and Gregg, I guess. We've got a number of amendments here, but we've kind of got them pushed into these yearlong processes. Some of them may not need to happen as quickly as a year, and so if we stretched them out a bit so that you didn't hear each of these amendments every single meeting. We wind up hearing less amendments at each meeting, right? Is that an approach we could take to kind of not hear so many actions each time?

MR. HARTIG: If you can find some that aren't time sensitive, but I don't know how many of those we have.

MR. HAYMANS: For instance, the Coral Shrimp. I've mentioned pushing it down, which is done here. But maybe to meet in the middle you start something with the golden crab as part of that. But it is not something that we're going to cram into a year. We start looking at it now, but we finalize it in '17 rather than trying to jam it all in there. I don't know how that works with staff time. I don't know some of the others may be the same way.

MR. WAUGH: I think, in addition to the staff time issues, it is your time to make sure we're fresh on what is in an amendment. The way we've sort of approached this is that there are enough time sensitive issues to fill these available slots that we have. We hadn't really given much thought to sort of starting on one and stopping it and switching to another. But that is certainly something we could thing about.

MR. PHILLIPS: Well, until Jessica said something about the Gulf working on yellowtails, I was thinking dolphin and yellowtails would be some of the prime candidates for the allocation amendment, which to me should probably take the place of Amendment 10. But again, I'm not sure how we mix and match and make it have a cake out of it.

MS. McCAWLEY: I'm trying to get clarification on the Gulf's Comprehensive Yellowtail Amendment. I'm trying to get confirmation on the timing.

MS. BECKWITH: For the cobia framework, since it does not appear that even if we started something in March that we would be able to effect the following season, so we're just going to

all have to live with those repercussions. I was wondering if we could take up Kari's second, third and fourth quarter spots for the cobia framework? Maybe, since it won't be anything but a bag limit adjustment, and maybe a reconsideration of the accountability measure. Maybe it won't take the full three slots, but that is what you mentioned the framework should be.

MR. CONKLIN: I just wanted to point out that we just got done with this yellowtail, changing the date. That is pretty much what we heard from the fishermen, what they wanted. They could live with a closure in the summertime if they had to, and there is nothing saying they're going to close again.

You know we've got other fisheries that are suffering with a lot smaller ACLs and a lot more participation that we need to circle back around and look at. If we could put it off. I mean, I understand we might need to go along with the Gulf with yellowtail or something, but we fixed that problem for now, sort of, but we patched it.

But if we could really focus in on a useful tool that we could use and apply over a lot of different stuff, I think everybody would be happier. We wouldn't have to be doing all these rushing and having stuff taking places of other stuff we need to be doing. I really see a lot of merit within the allocation shift idea.

DR. DUVAL: All right, so we have a cobia framework possibly. We have a Fishery Seasonality Retention Regulatory Amendment. Coral Shrimp has been shifted down into 2017, and I think Jessica can get some clarification on timing of yellowtail that might help inform us. I guess the things I see, an allocation amendment is probably going to get fairly big; unless it just stays focused on development of this tool.

I will say that development of a tool for a potential temporary shift, you still have to have a mechanism for triggering that and applying it to a particular species. Keep that in mind. I'm not disagreeing that that would be a priority. I think if we could limit to the fishery seasonality retention to three items that would be good. Cobia, I have mixed thoughts. I mean we're not going to affect anything for next year.

MS. BECKWITH: Right and that was my reasoning for putting it into beginning in June with Kari after she's finished with Amendment 26, because there is nothing we can do to affect this following season, but if we begin in June we'll be able to affect the next season. Otherwise, we'll have a closure with nothing in process to fix the problem and that will go over like a ton of bricks, probably.

DR. DUVAL: I think the other items that Gregg noted, and I'm not trying to add these to the list I am just trying to remind folks of what is out there; are assessment related items for gray triggerfish, for tilefish yes, because we're getting that tilefish update. I would recommend, let's use our abbreviated process that we actually haven't used yet of let's update the ACL first.

We tend to slow these ACL updates down, because we're trying to consider management actions at the same time. This might be a good opportunity to put that in place and then have a more deliberate approach to any changes in management. I mean, we just put in a split season for gray triggerfish and a thousand pound trip limit. My recommendation would be let those sit.

MR. HARTIG: To follow up on tilefish. I don't see any reason to put any more management restrictions in there. Those two species, I think, are ready to use an expedited framework procedure.

DR. DUVAL: The one outstanding item on golden tilefish was that potential change for the hook and line start date of the fishing year – Charlie – which would certainly fit well in a fishing seasonality retention amendment, we are moving forward at the end of this meeting, and I apologize for all this thinking out loud.

If we're moving forward with a change to the black sea bass bag limit. Doug, I know you're very interested in pursuing a modification to the size limit as well. It seems to me, do we not want to see how that shakes out first before we move forward too quickly with that? I see the Regional Administrator nodding his head yes.

MR. HAYMANS: That's fine, I just go by the assessment that Mike Errigo provided us, which said it is really not going to have a huge effect on the ACL, so that is why I would go ahead and move along. As much as I would like to go ahead and move along, I'm okay with waiting until we put it somewhere later, I mean that is fine. But the only reason I suggested we do it is because Mike said it's not going to be a huge effect on the ACL. Hey, I guess we'll find out if we wait, right?

MS. BECKWITH: Well, and Doug just to that point. I mean, we had some conversation today about what is the appropriate amount of ACL to be attempting to achieve? That may very well be a discussion that sort of reorganizes how this council starts looking at this. If the black sea bass with seven bag limits gets to 50 or 60 percent, we may not want. Excuse me? Fifty or 60 percent of the ACL then we may not want to continue. We may want to stick it there and leave it at achieving 50 or 60 percent of the ACL.

DR. DUVAL: If we're looking at allocation. Gregg, is it possible to e-mail this around to folks and let them think on it overnight? Are folks okay with that? You've got some real exciting drams ahead of you, Charlie. I was postulating that it would be nice to only keep a Fishery Seasonality Retention Amendment to three items, but then I violated my own thought. I am like Ben, and added the golden tilefish hook and line fishing year start date.

That is something that has been lying out. The things to me that would fit within an amendment like that - and we can talk about what might stay or go - is that hook and line fishing year start date, red porgy split season, the jacks trip limit and the shallow water grouper spawning season modifications. That is four things and that is almost one item too many.

MR. CONKLIN: I just wanted to point out that the golden tilefish fishery hook and line segment closed December 8th. It might not be a priority; we almost had a year round fishery this year, at least.

DR. DUVAL: It has closed earlier. Last year I think it closed in September/October.

MS. BECKWITH: I was just going to note that most of those items are commercially oriented, so if we could take some consideration into some of the visioning components for recreational that would be good.

DR. DUVAL: Well, you have tonight to dream about that. Is that enough for folks to think about overnight, in terms of priorities? Okay. What do we have left here, Bob or Gregg, both of you?

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, I was just going to fill the council in on the eight regional council's decision to go ahead and try to hire a person to kind of keep us informed of what is going on. I can do that very quickly if you would like me to. Yes, the eight regional councils, as most of you know have a Council Coordinating Committee that is made up of the Executive Directors and the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Councils.

For a number of years the councils have wanted to have somebody in Washington to keep us apprised of what was going on. Things happen quick up there. It is hard to find out unless you've got a lot of inside knowledge of what's happening. Most recently, we actually had the person that we've kind of been looking for all these years retired from the House of Representatives as one of the head staff members. His name is Dave Whaley.

We've all worked with him; he is very, very council friendly. We've helped him; he's let us help him on the side write a little legislation here and there and this type of thing. He is very knowledgeable about the councils, the Magnuson Act process. He spent most of his career up there in recent years working on that.

The eight regional councils - I think six of the councils have approved bringing Dave onboard, and we and I believe the Caribbean Council are still the only two that have not made that decision. Now I would like to point out, as Executive Director I have the ability to enter into contracts. That is part of the job. But this was kind of unique and I didn't want anybody to get blindsided, so I wanted to talk to you a little bit about it.

There are several attachments in there, one deals with the Gulf Council already has Dave under contract for the rest of this year. They are the lead CCC Council. What happens is each year a council area or jurisdiction we're going to meet in that Chairman and ED become the lead for the CCC for the year.

The annual meeting this year was down in the Gulf, and the Gulf Council has been the lead. They have funding available to cover Dave the rest of this year. He has already provided a lot of information. I've been kind of shifting it over to Michelle, but once we get all this going we'll be sending it out to everybody. There is a lot of stuff going on up there that we need to be aware of. You will see in there, there is a draft kind of scope of work. It will be tailored for each council. The cost to each council is \$7,500.00 a year. It is not a significant cost for a contract of this kind. I just want to make sure you're all aware of it and see if anybody had any questions.

DR. DUVAL: Are there any questions for Bob about this?

MS. McCAWLEY: I think it is a great idea. Dave Whaley is an excellent individual to do this. I just was looking at the scope of work and noted that you all are not tracking the Sportsmen's Act. There is also another bill out there that has to do with Biscayne National Park and National Parks, I believe that that has been added to the Sportsmen's Package on one side, but on the House side but not on the Senate, so just something that you might want to add to track.

MR. MAHOOD: Right and like I say, each council has things in their area that are pretty individual, and we can certainly add that into our contract. We would do the typical contract we do with an individual for this type of work.

MR. BELL: He would work with all eight councils simultaneously?

MR. MAHOOD: Correct. A lot of what he would provide would be generic to all councils, but then each council might have specific areas they would like him to be keeping track of. Now he can't lobby for us. He can't go up there and lobby for money or talk to people about what the council's would like to have or see. But he certainly with his experience can certainly help folks get an idea of how the Magnuson Act would work best. He will be a contact with the councils.

DR. DUVAL: Any other questions for Bob about this? Does anyone have any concerns about entering into such an agreement? Personally I think it would be extremely helpful. I've seen some of the summaries that Dave has provided to the Gulf Council and I certainly don't have time to dig into all of that stuff or go researching it, so it is really helpful to have that kind of summary.

DR. LANEY: Well, just a question for Bob and also for you too I guess, since you're very integrally involved in ASMFC. I know ASMFC has a person on staff that sort of serves as a congressional liaison in the person of Deke Tompkins. They also have a firm that tracks legislation for them and provides, I think it's a couple of summaries a year at least.

I guess those of us that are a part of ASMFC, see all of that information as well. Is that something that is duplicative to a certain extent? I know because obviously the jurisdictions are different, so there may be some interests that are different but also there would be some overlap there too, I would think. I don't know whether that has any bearing on this contract or not, but I just mention it.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, and I think it might be a little overlap, but the difference with ASMFC, their liaison can lobby, because he is being funded. Although ASMFC gets a lot of federal funds they also get state funded resources. Each state pays a certain amount of dues to ASMFC and that allows them more flexibility than the councils have that receive 100 percent federal funding.

This is something; obviously somebody from ASMFC wouldn't provide information that would benefit the other councils. Although it did come up in some of the discussions at the Pacific Council relative to the Pacific Commission has a similar thing that the Atlantic Commission has. MR. COX: How much did you say the charge was for him to do this?

MR. MAHOOD: One point five million; no, \$7,500.00 annually.

DR. DUVAL: That is very cheap.

MR. MAHOOD: It's cheap for up there.

MR. COX: I could just forward the Seafood Harvesters of America's newsletter to you guys; they watch this stuff like a hawk up in D.C.

DR. DUVAL: There are lots of groups out there that track legislation through their own lens. I think that is the difference here is that this would be through the lens of the councils and council activities.

MR. HARTIG: We saw the Jolly Bill over there in the Gulf looking for 10 million dollars for better science. There is some e-mail track going around, just the realization that if we don't get involved with Congress we're dead in the water as far as getting any money anytime. We don't have a champion yet, maybe we can find someone. But is this someone that we could work with to help? No.

DR. DUVAL: Like Bob said, we cannot lobby. This is someone who is helping us keep track of just legislation.

MR. HARTIG: I wasn't asking him to lobby, I was asking him for someone who could point us in the right direction to be able to educate us on the best way to move forward in trying to find a champion possibly, better ways to look for money within Congress, maybe not us but other constituents. It is just an educational thing. Would he be available for that type of exercise?

MR. MAHOOD: He certainly could recommend people to us that we might want to contact, the council members may want to contact. He's got a lot of connections that will be very useful. We have to be very careful. We are like NMFS, NMFS can't go up there and lobby for funding or research vessels or that kind of thing.

This has all been very clear in all this development of this, the contracts and things like that. But he has already, I mean I've seen a couple things in the material he sent out that I didn't know was going on up there, and some bills that have very specific funding for like states and certain geographical areas and this type of thing; and there are so many of them.

DR. DUVAL: Just to circle back to any concerns about this. I just would like to get the consent of the committee. Okay I'm not seeing any concern so you have our blessing.

MR. MAHOOD: Thank you and I assume everyone would like to get the information, more information.

DR. DUVAL: Yes. I think there was just one other item, which was standards and procedures for participating in council webinar meetings.

MR. MAHOOD: Right, and we weren't going to get into the weeds on that just to tell the council kind of what the staff has been looking at. We've had a couple things come up relative to webinars, and as all of you know, we're shifting more of our efforts in an effort to save funds and provide really better information to a greater, wider audience through webinars.

Some of the things that came up like I think at the last Snapper Grouper Advisory Panel meeting were, can a Snapper Grouper Advisory Panel member be at home on the webinar and still vote? Obviously, they can participate, but can they still vote and this type of thing? That leads to the question, can a council member sitting at home on a webinar while we're all here together, vote?

Those kinds of things need to be discussed, and we need to develop some procedures and some policy about how we're going to develop this. I mean, if that was the case we might show up and there might be three of us and everybody else is on the webinar, I don't know. But maybe Monica has an answer.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, I don't know if I have an answer right now, but I would be glad to help. I've heard this issue come up. We have a biweekly weekly Magnuson Act attorney's call with attorneys across the country who advises councils and that sort of thing and I believe this has come up in Alaska, and it came up somewhere else; Gulf of Mexico that's right. In my office, I should know about this. I can help provide some advice on that and I'll be glad to look into it.

MR. MAHOOD: We will certainly take you up on that.

MR. BOWEN: I'll be at the beach house tomorrow, you all can let me know from there, I'll be listening in.

DR. DUVAL: That was our last item of business. Is there any other business to come before the Executive Finance Committee? If not, I think Gregg is going to e-mail around that Excel Spreadsheet so folks can be thinking about, and I would especially encourage thinking about the top priority items that would want in a Seasonality Retention Amendment. I think we've already got the other ones kind of outlined, in terms of slots. But we need to give that some thought. Chris, I saw you with your hand up?

MR. CONKLIN: No, I didn't have it raised.

DR. DUVAL: He was just cheering that we're recessing until tomorrow morning. We will start at eight o'clock.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned, December 11, 2015.)

Transcribed By: Graham Transcriptions, Inc. January 2016

Certified By:	Date:

2015 – 2016 COMMITTEES

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Chester Brewer, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen Michelle Duval Ben Hartig Doug Haymans

Staff contact: Kim Iverson

CATCH SHARES

Jack Cox, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
Ben Hartig
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact:
Kari MacLauchlin / Brian Cheuvront

DATA COLLECTION

Mel Bell, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Mark Brown
Chris Conklin
Jack Cox
Wilson Laney
Charlie Phillips
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

DOLPHIN WAHOO

Anna Beckwith, Chair
Zack Bowen, Vice-Chair
Chester Brewer
Chris Conklin
Roy Crabtree
Doug Haymans
Jessica McCawley
Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DiLernia/Dewey
Hemilright
Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Chair
Wilson Laney, Vice Chair
Mel Bell
Chester Brewer
Jack Cox
Jessica McCawley
Charlie Phillips
LTJG Tara Pray
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP
Chip Collier - CEBA

EXECUTIVE/FINANCE

✓ Michelle Duval, Chair ✓ Charlie Phillips, Vice Chair ✓ Mel Bell ✓ Ben Hartig ✓ Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Bob Mahood

GOLDEN CRAB

Ben Hartig, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Jack Cox Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Anna Beckwith, Chair Jack Cox, Vice-Chair Zack Bowen Chester Brewer Mark Brown Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

(Continued)

2015 - 2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

COUNCIL CHAIR

Dr. Michelle Duval NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell Street (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/808-8011 (ph); 252/726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

VICE-CHAIR

Charlie Phillips
Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms
1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga capt@yahoo.com

Robert E. Beal
Executive Director
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries
Commission
1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N
Arlington, VA 20001
703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f)
rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith 1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 252/671-3474 (ph) AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Mel Bell
S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources
Marine Resources Division
P.O. Box 12559
(217 Ft. Johnson Road)
Charleston, SC 29422-2559
843/953-9007 (ph)
843/953-9159 (fax)
bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Zack Bowen
P.O. Box 30825
Savannah, GA 31410
912/398-3733 (ph)
fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer

250 Australian Ave. South
Suite 1400
West Palm Beach, FL 33408
561/655-4777 (ph)
WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown
3642 Pandora Drive

Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466
843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f)
capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin
P.O. Box 972

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
843/543-3833
conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Jack Cox
2010 Bridges Street

Morehead City, NC 28557
252/728-9548

Dayboat1965@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree
Regional Administrator
/ NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region
263 13th Avenue South
St. Petersburg, FL 33701
727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f)
roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

2015 - 2016 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
doughaymans@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E., Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com LTJG Tara Pray
U.S. Coast Guard
909 SE 1st Ave.
Miami, FL 33131
tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

BONNIE PODULTH
MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO
JACK MCGOVERN
ERIKA BURGESS
SCOTT SANDORF

COUNCIL STAFF

Executive Director

Robert K. Mahood

Deputy Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson

kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fishery Outreach Specialist

Amber Von Harten

amber.vonharten@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

√ Roger Pugliese

roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Dr. Mike Errigo

mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

Dr. Kari MacLauchlin

kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Chip Collier

Chip.Collier@safmc.net

Staff Economist

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael

john.carmichael@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - julie.neer@safmc.net

Julia Byrd – <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins

mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher

deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chava

cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

Julie O'Dell

julie.odell@safmc.net



South Atlantic Fishery Management Council -December 2015 Council Meeting

Atlantic Beach, NC

Date: Thursday December 10, 2015

Committee: Executive Finance

PLEASE SIGN IN -

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown above.

Name:	Mailing Address/E-mail: (If your information is currently on file, please check the box.)	How do you participate in South Atlantic fisheries? (Check all that apply)	
1	On File	Commercial	NGO 🗆
Leda Dunmirz		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire □	Other Describe
Lora	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire □	Other Describe
David Bush	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. □
		Charter/ D	Other Describe
Dean	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ D	Other Describe
Antrew Rubin	On File	Commercial	NGO 🗆
		Recreational	Govt. □
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe
Kallie	On File	Commercial	NGO □
Ralston		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/ For-hire	Other Describe

Council MTG DAY 4

Last Name	First Name	Email Address	10 Dec 15
Mumford	Doug Mumford	doug.mumford@ncdenr.gov	10 DEC 12
Alvarado	Nicolas	Nicolas.Alvarado@noaa.gov	
Austin	Anthony	redress@ec.rr.com	
Bademan	Martha	martha.bademan@myfwc.com	
Bailey	Adam	adam.bailey@noaa.gov	
Baker	Scott	bakers@uncw.edu	
Ballenger	Joey	ballengerj@dnr.sc.gov	
Bianchi	Alan	Alan.Bianchi@ncdenr.gov	
Bissette	Jesse	jlbissette13@gmail.com	
Black	Michael	mike@floribbeansea.com	
Black	Michael	mblack54@bellsouth.net	
Bonura	Vincent	SailRaiser25C@aol.com	
Brady	Bonnie	greenfluke@optonline.net	
Brennan	Ken	kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov	
Bresnen	Anthony	anthony.bresnen@myfwc.com	
Byrd	Julia	julia.byrd@safmc.net	
Clarke	Lora	lclarke@pewtrusts.org	
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov	
Desfosse	Joseph	joseph.desfosse@noaa.gov	
Dukes	Amy	DukesA@dnr.sc.gov	
Erwin	Gwen	gwen.erwin@myfwc.com	
Froeschke	John	john.froeschke@gulfcouncil.org	
Gerhart	Susan	susan,gerhart@noaa.gov	
Gore	Karla	karla.gore@noaa.gov	
Hadley	John	john.hadley@ncdenr.gov	
Helies	Frank	fchelies@verizon.net	
Hesselman	Don	don.hesselman@ncdenr.gov	
Hudson	Rusty	DSF2009@aol.com	
Hudson	Mary	mhudson@gmri.org	
Iverson	Kim	kim.iverson@safmc.net	
Johnson	Denise	denise.johnson@noaa.gov	
Knowlton	Kathy	kathy.knowlton@dnr.ga.gov	
L	1	captaindrifter@bellsouth.net	
Lee	Jennifer	Jennifer.Lee@noaa.gov	
Levy	Mara	mara.levy@noaa.gov	
Lindh	Ryan	nativetrade@bellsouth.net	
MCCallum	James	jimmccall@mindspring.com	
Malinowski	Rich	rich.malinowski@noaa.gov	
Markwith	Anne	anne.markwith@ncdenr.gov	
Martin	Gretchen	gbmartin71@gmail.com	
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov	

MerrifieldMikemikem@wildoceanmarket.comMitchellWwarren.mitchell@noaa.govMuhammadErnestMuhammade@dnr.sc.gov

Package-Ward Christina christina.package-ward@noaa.gov

Raine Karen karen.raine@noaa.gov
Records David david.records@noaa.gov
Reichert Marcel Reichertm@dnr.sc.gov

Roberts Claire claire.roberts@gulfcouncil.org

Schalit David dschalit@gmail.com

Sedberry George george.sedberry@noaa.gov
Smith Scott scott.smith@ncdenr.gov
Stafford Pete spstafford@gmail.com

holiman stephen stephen.holiman@noaa.gov
pugliese roger roger.pugliese@safmc.net
rindone ryan ryan.rindone@gulfcouncil.org
sandorf scott scott.sandorf@noaa.gov

smart tracey smartt@dnr.sc.gov
vara mary mary.vara@noaa.gov
Brown Angela brownac@dnr.sc.gov
Buckson Bruce bruce@buckson.net
FARMER NICK nick.farmer@noaa.gov

Herndon Andrew Andrew.Herndon@noaa.gov

Mansfield Bill billman@ec.rr.com
Smith Myron myronsmith@nc.rr.com

Steamer Donald b001936@gmail.com
c m mec181@yahoo.com

custer carl carlswholesale@yahoo.com